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Key Points

2 Group’s performance impacted by contract delays -
however these contracts remain in negotiation

5 Revenue of £7 25m (2011 £8 87m)

- ARM software licence szales down by 51% to
£220m (2011 £4 70m)

- Support revenues up by 11% to £3 69m (2011
£3 33m;)

- Service revenues up by 51% to £1 17m {2011
£0 78m})

[ Loss before tax of £1 71m (2011 profit before tax of
£107m)

= Basic loss per share of 5 6p (2011 earnings per
share of 3 5p)

& Net cash increased to £3 3m at 31 March 2012
{2011+ £2 2m) including the proceeds of a placing n
June 2011

3 Sales and marketing capacity significantly
strengthened to support growth

- two senior appointments in USA
- offices In Australia and Middie East opened
" 23 new custormers signed

Group remans 0 a strong position 1o close some
significant deals in the new financial year
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Chairman’s Statement

While second half revenues across all income streams showed an improvement over the first half, the overall
result 1s disappointng As we previously reported, results for the year ended 31 March 2012 were significantly
impacted by contract delays These contracts remain in negotiation and are expected to be signed over the
course of the new financial year, however the delays mean that the Group has delivered a loss before tax of
£1 71m for the year to 31 March 2012 (2011 profit of £1 Q7m)

Notwithstanding this disappointing financial result, we made good progress against our three year plan for the
business, which we began in the last financial year In ine with our plan, we continued to nvest In the Graup and
to drive cultural change, particularly to ensure that we are customer-focused in all our actons A major area of
focus was In sales and marketing We made two significant senior appointments in the USA and also opened
offices in Australa and the Middle East, where the growth potential 1s very good We believe that this investrment
will support the promotion of our brand and expansion of our market share Qver the next twelve months, our
emphasis on creating a sales and marketing led organisation remans key and we wil be stepping up our
marketing campagns to further differentiate us frorn our competition

We added a total of 23 new customers during the year (2011 20) and, as planned, we continued to invest In our
product, Active Risk Manager, and issued a new release in January 2012 with further major functionality
improvements

We also completed the name change of the Group to ‘Active Risk Group plc' (from ‘Strategic Thought Group
plc’) This has alfowed us to capitalise on the strong market position of ARM

We closed the financial year with net cash of £3 3m, including the proceeds from a placing completed i June
2011 Locking forward, the delayed contracts which affectad 2012 resuits remain in negohation and we have
continued to buld our pipeline of prospects We therefore believe that we remain well placed to close some
excellent deals in the new financial year which will build value for our shareholders

Financial Performance

For the year to 31 March 2012, revenues decreased by 18% to £7 25m (2011 £8 87m), with licence sales of
ARM down by 6§1% to £2 29m following delays in signing expected new contracts (2011 £4 70m) Support
revenues increased by 11% to £3 69m (2011 £3 33m) reflecting the expansion of our ARM customer base
Services revenues rose by 51% to £1 17m (2011 £0 78m), driven by new customer engagements

Cost of sales, which includes the costs of our software development, support and services teams, was 5% higher
at £3 50m (2011 £3 34m) and reflected mvestment in the ARM product With lower revenues, gross profit was
E3 76m (2011 £5 53m)

Administrative expenses {excluding exceptional items and share based payments) were 2% higher at £2 17m
{2011 £2 13m) Further nvestrment in the sales and marketing teams and the openng of sales offices in Australia
and the Middle East resulted 1n a 14% increase (n sales and distnbulion costs to £3 20m (2011 £2 80m)

The loss before nterest, tax, share based payments and exceptional items was £1 61m (2011 profit of £0 60m)
Share based payments totalled £0 12m (2011 credit of £0 46m) and the loss before tax was €1 71m (2011 profit
before tax of £1 07m)

Adjusted basic loss per share (based on LBITAE) was 5 1p (2011 adjusted earnings per share of 2 1p) Basic
loss per share was 5 6p (2011 earnings per share of 3 5p)

The Group's net cash position at the year-end stood at £3 3m (2011 £2 2m) This included the proceeds of
£1 36m {net) from a placing of shares in June 2011

Dividend
The Board 1s not recommending a dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 £nil)
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Chairman’s Statement continued

ARM Licence Sales

We signed 23 new customers during the year n vanous indusiry sectors and across the world In addition, we
saw encouraging levels of existing customers extend the number of ther ARM user licences Further details are
provided n the Business Review beiow

The Market Opportunity and our Strategy & Execution

The Business Review contains a comprehensive analysts of the market need for nsk management software, why
ARM 15 well posiioned to meet this need and how we are arganising our business to maximise shareholder value
from this business opporturity

| want to emphasise the nportance we are placing on continuing te invest In our sales teams and, in particular,
In marketing which we feel will make a significant contribution to our business over the next twelve months We
are now sales and marketing led and mn 2013 we will be running high profile campangns, with contributions from
industry leaders, to raise the awareness of the business benefits of good rnsk managernent

Partner network

We cantinue to work with potential new partners who will add value to our product offering and who can introduce
us INto sales cycles at an executive level With existing partners signed-up 1n the USA, Middle East and Australia,
we have added a new partner in South Amenca since the year-end

Qur Staff

Actve Risk has a tremendous leam of staff and we wouki ke to thank our colleagues for therr ongoing
dedication, commitment and hard work

The Board

There were two Board changes duning the financial year lan Johnston jeined the Board in December 2011 as a
Non-executive Director and, as planned, Peter Morgan retired at the end of March 2012, following lain’s
appomtment On behalf of the Board, | would iike to record our appreciation and gratitude to Peter Morgan for
his services to Active Risk over the years and also to weicome lain to the team

Qutlook

We remain confident about the prospects for our business and, i line with our three year plan, have strengthened
tne talent In the business and stepped up our marketing to allow us to take advantage of the growing opportunity
for our software solution in the enterpnse risk management marketplace We continue to work on signing the
delayed contracts as well as continuing to build our prospects pipeline | look forward to updating shareholders
on the progress we are making In due course

Lynton Barker
Executive Charman
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Business Review

Qur core business

Active Risk provides a leading Enterprise Risk Management ('ERM") solution which allows organisations to
identify, analyse and manage risks more effectively, enabling enhanced business performance The Active Risk
approach to ERM inciudes four key areas Operational Risk Management, Project Risk Management, Governance
and Compliance, and Opportunity Management

Qur markets
We focus on arganisations with the following charactenstics

*  revenues in excess of $1 billlon

« complex global operaticns

. capital intensive contracts

. increased regulation and compliance requirements

. Increased cost reduction requirements

Accordingly, we concentrate on the following market sectors
. Aercspace & Defence

*  Construction and Engineering

*  Government

»  Energy (ncluding Oil & Gas, and Mining)

We look at opportunities ouitside these sectars on a return on investment basts, matching the cost of sale and
cosis of ongoing commitment to the revenue that these opportuniies afford

The Opportunity

Our target customers typically wish to improve business performance, stay lean and manage shareholder value
The effective identification, analysis and management of nisk are key components in improving both operational
and financial performance, and while orgarusations recognise this, critical exposures still exist in many compantes
Executive-level perception of nsk continues to be obscured by organisational sitos and cutdated or ineflicient
systems potentially leaving a performance gap between an orgarsation’s expectations for nsk management and
what 1s actually achieved

The importance of a mature approach to nsk was recently highighted in an £rnst & Young report, Turning Risk
into Resuits (published i March 2012}, which stated that "Our point of view 15 that companies with more mature
nsk management practices outperform ther peers financially " An accurate, complete view of all nsk rs cntical to
the strategic decision making process, enabling business leaders to address challenges, dentify opportunities
and create competitive agvantage

How Active Risk takes advantage of this opportunity

We help our customers to succeed by making nsk management a construciive and less complex process Actve
Risk ensures that business leaders have actionable data to make informed business decisions and capture
strategic value wathin thewr orgamsation Our product Actve Risk Manager ('ARM') addresses the risk
management process In a comprehensive manner {encompassing the six steps of identification, anatysis, controt,
monitoring, improvemnent and reporting) and 1s the oniy solution that simplifies the identification and analysis of all
risks at every level in an orgarusation so that executives can estabhsh an accurate view
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Business Review continued

ARM brings the following benefits

Competifive Advantage

Business leaders who understand ther organisation’s nsk profile are better able 1o leverage tt to create
opportunity and competitve advantage With superior ERM, risk can be addressed thoughtfully and proactively
ensunng that strategic goals are met

i

- Reaction times decrease, improving business performance,

—  Project predictability improves, outperforming the competitron with more on-time and on-budget delivenes,
- Comphance 1s thoroughly addressed, boosting confidence and providing peace of mind, and

- Most mportantly, new opportunities are discovered, accelerating growth

Strategic Visibihly

Active Risk provides the only solution that can cotlect all nsk data from anywhere in an organisation, at the point
at which it 15 encountered — whether on a project, n operations, or at a strategic level This ensures true risk
visibility across an enterprise

Actionable Data

Active Risk’'s ERM technology 15 designed 1o fiter large quantities of nsk data to ensure that executwes have the
exact information that will help them to meet therr strategic goals Comprehensive, real-tme data 1 immediately
actionable through dashboards and reports that are defined agamst business objectves

Our strategy

Our strategy 1s aligned to the direction of the nsk market and we have built sales teams with the necessary
enterprise-wide selling and domain knowiedge skills to sell the business case and convert our ARM sales pipeling
Into new customers This 1s supported by our marketing function which refines market targeting and delivers the
ARM value proposttion 1o the market

During the year, we have opened sales offices in Australia and the Middle East to support our existing operations
in the UK and USA and take advantage of the growth opporturities avaflable to us

Our competitive position

ARM 18 unique N baing able to fulfil the end-to-end requrements of risk management wilh its scalable, integrated,
standards-based, real time and consolidated view of enterpnse-wide nsk profies Our strategy and roadmap,
based on customer needs, 1s designed to keep us focused and ahead of the market To this end our product
roadmap has been refined to include coverage of controls and compliance that assist good sk management, as
well as leading edge business analytics such as nsk inteligence

We are unnvalled as a company delivering a market-leading nsk management software solution to our target
industry sectors We offer the most comprehensive software solution for ngk and have industry experts in our
team, with In-depth expenence of successful large-scale nsk management implementations The essence of risk
management (s aboul culture change and our full service capabilty, together with our aliance partners, sets us
apart In addition, we belleve our core services capabiities further set us apart by enabling us to integrate our risk
management solution Into our customers’ existing complex process Infrastructures

Re-branding
W have re-branded the Group to take advantage of ARM's market leading pesition and to reflect the nature of
our product and services more directly in the Group's name

in addiion, our website was re-launched in Aprd 2012 1o reflect our competitve positioring more accurately and
to brand risk as a positive which brings improved business performance and competitive advantage
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Business Review continued

KPIs

We monitor key performance indicators ('KPIs'} of revenue, customer and profit growth and these are covered In
the Chairman's Statement and elsewhere within this Business Review

Annual performance

202 2011 Vanance

EMEA us Total EMEA us Total EMEA us Total

£000s £000s £000s E000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s %
Revenue
Licences 1,359 934 2,293 3,260 1,437 4697 (1,901 (503)  (2,404) -51%
Services 755 416 1,111 ar7 399 776 378 17 395 51%
Support 2,389 1,304 3,693 1,869 1,460 3,329 520 {156) 364 11%
Cther 45 50 95 27 32 (615 18 11 28 44%
Total 4,548 2,704 7,252 6,633 3,335 8,868 (985) {631) (1,616) -18%
Profit/ [L.oss)" (1,607) 803 {2,210} -3687%

* Profit/ (Loss) 1S the operaling result before interest, tax, share based payments and exceptional tems
Revenues for the year were £7 25m (2011 £8 87m)
ARM hcence revenues were £2 29m (2011 £4 70m) 28 new customers (2011 20} were added dunng the year

and these Included

s Ausenco, a global leader 1n engineerng and project managernent services for the resources and energy
seclors, with tts corporate headquarters in Bnsbane, Australia

*  Bechtel

. Emirates Nuciear Energy Corporation

. Fortescue, one of the world's largest producers and sea-borne traders of ron ore, based n Austraha
. Mirvac, a leading integrated real eslate group in Austraha

. NATO

+ OV

. Roads & Transport Authonty, Dubai

*  Unted Arines

Additional icences were sold to existing customers

. Alstom, the power generation and transport company

. Amiin, the speciaist insurance and reinsurance underwnting group

s  Federal Aviation Agency

*  Transport for London

*  Lockheed Marlin

Revenues in our services business were £1 17m (2011 £0 78m), driven by new customer engagements

Our support revenues grew by 11% to £3 63m (2011 £3 33m)}, reflecting the continuing expansion of the ARM
customer base
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Financial Review

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

The analysis of the Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive incorme has been prepared using the information
provided in the table below, which separates out exceptional costs and share based payments from LBITAE*
This analysis is not the same as that in the Consolidated Stalement of Comprehensive Income

2012 2011 Vanance
£000s £000s £000s %
Revenue 7,252 8,868 1,616) -18%
Cost of sales (3,497) (3,336) (161) -5%
Gross profit 3,755 5,532 (1.777) -32%
Administrative expenses (2,166) {2,129) {37) -2%
Selling and distribution costs (3.196) (2,800) (396) -14%
(LBITAE)/PBITAE* {1,6807) 603 (2,210)
Exceptional items - 5 {5)
Share based payments (115} 459 (574)
Nel inance income 13 2 11
(Loss)/Profit before Income tax (1,709) 1,069 (2,778)
Income tax expense (43) (64) 21
(Loss)/Profit for the financial year (1,752) 1,005 {2,757)

* LBITAE/PBITAE stands for (loss)/profit before interest, tax, share based payments and exceptional items

For the year to 31 March 2012, revenues were lower at £7 25m (2011 £8 87m) Licence sales of ARM were
£2 29m (2011 €4 70m), refiecting delays in closing major contracts Support revenues increased by 11% to
£3 69m (2011 £3 33m), reflecting the continuing growth of our ARM custamer base Services revenues moved
forward by 51% to £1 17m (2011 £0 78m}, driven by new customer engagements

Cost of sales, which includes the costs of our development, support and services teams, was 5% higher at
£3 50m {2011 £3 34m), reflecting investment in the ARM product With lower revenues, gross profit was £3 76m
(2011 £5 53m)

Administrative expenses {excluding exceptional items and share based payments) were 2% higher at £2 17m
(2011 £2 13m) Sales and distnbution costs werg £3 20m (2011 £2 80mj, reflecting our continued mvestment
in the sales and marketing teams and the opening of sales offices in Australia and the Middle East

The loss before interest, tax, share based payments and exceptional fems was £1 61m (2011 profit of £0 60m)
Compared to the previous year, share based payments was a cost of £0 12m (2011 credit of £C 46m)

As a consequence of the above, the loss before tax was £1 71m (2011 profit' £1 07m)}
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Financial Review continued

Earnings per share and dividends

Adjusted basic 1oss per share (based on LBITAE) was 5 1p (2011 earrungs per share 2 1p) Basic loss per share
for the year was 5 6p (2011 earnings per share 3 5p)

The Beard 1s not recommending a dwidend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 £nif)

Taxation

The income tax expense of £0 04m (2011 £0 06m) was pnmaniy due to tax due in the US under the transfer
pncing arrangements in place between the US and UK and also in respect of withholding tax paid on overseas
revernue n the year that 1s not recoverable

The Group has £1 84m (2011 £1 37m) of unprovided deferred tax assets of which £188m (2011 £1 33m)
relates 1o camed forward tax losses This deferred tax asset has not been recegnised in the Consoldated
Financial Statements due to the uncertainty of the tming of its recoverability, but 15 avalable for offset against
future taxable profits

Cash and foretgn exchange

As at 31 March 2012, net cash was £3 3m (2011 £2 2m) which ncluded the proceeds of £1 36m (net) from the
placing n June 2011 At 31 March 2012 there was £55,000 (2011 £120,000) outstanding on a bank foan from
the Royal Bank of Scotland Tha loan 1s included in the net cash position

Al 31 March 2012, the Group had forward foraign exchange contracts in place to offset non-sterling denominated
positions held on its statement of financial positon However, at the year end, the far value of ouistanding foreign
exchange contracts was not considered to be material and consequently these have not been accounted for
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Enterprise Risk Management

Managing risk

Active Risk Group uses Active Risk Manager (ARM’} to help manage business threats and opportunities It s
used by the management team to manage corporaie level nsks that have been escalated through assessment
at a matenalty level of 1% of revenue All nisks that are greater than this nsk appetite level have a mitigation

strategy in place aimed at reducing the nsk o an acceptable level

The corporate nsk register as at 31 March 2012 records each nsk in the business having been rolled up and

re-assessed against the corporate sk assessment scheme

We must recognise, however, that some core business threats cannot be totally mitigated due to the trade-off

between the cost of the mitigation strategy to do this and the step down In nsk level

From a shareholder perspective we seek to optimise the cost of mitigation against the parformance targats of the

busingss and the return on invesiment of this assessed against the nsk level

The top 5 nsks and the largest opportunity taken from ARM are as follows

ARM Risk Register - Top 5 Risks

Risk level Risk tevel
Risk description pre-mitigation Mitigation post-mutigation
Theft of intellectual Property HIGH Protect source code, keep MEDIUM
nnovating, ensure contract
coverage
Incarrect corporate/product HIGH Constant monitorng and LOW
strategy re-validation of market opporturity
Competitor takes largest HIGH Constantly monitor what our MEDIUM
market share compettors are doing versus our
strategy, and continue investing
In our sales and marketing teams
{ oss of major customer HIGH Customer care programme 10 LOW
monitor customer satisfaction
Fadure to deliver on HIGH Monitor our ability to deliver on LOW
cusiomer promise time and to custorner requiremeanis
ARM Risk Register - Largest Opportunity
Opportumty description Opportumity Opportunity
level pre-plan Plan leve] post-plan
Develop relationships with LOW Identify consultancies with whom to LARGE

major consultancies

partner ang develop combined
solutions to take to market

10
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Directors and Advisors
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L K Barker Execulive Charman

A H Darby Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer
AN Gordon*# Senior Non-executive Duector

I 8 Johnston*# Non-execuive Director

* Audit Commuttes
# Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Secretary
A K Berry

Registered Office
1 Grenfell Road
Maidenhead
Berkshire

SLE 1HN

United Kingdom

Registrars
Equinits Ltd

PO Box 4630
Aspect House
Lancing

West Sussex
8N29 6QQ
United Kingdom

Broker

FinnCap

60 New Broad Street
London

EC2M 1JJ

United Kingdom

Auditor

PKF (UK) LLP
Pannell House
Park Street
Guildford
Surrey

GU1 4HN
United Kingdom

Lawyers

Harrison Clark LLP
5 Deansway
Worcester

WR1 2JG

United Kingdom

Bankers

Royal Bank of Scotland plc
115 High Street

Epsom

Surrey

KT19 8YA

United Kimgdom
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Directors’ Biographies

Details of the Directors are as follows

1. Lynton Barker

Executive Charmarn

Appointed to the Board in November 2008, appointed Chairman in April 2009 and Executive Charman in April
2010 He was a Non-executive Director of Mouche! Group pic from 2008 to 2011 Between 2003 and 2008 he
was a director, and latterly Chairman, of Hedra plc Prior to that he had a long career in management consultancy,
having been Head of UK Consullancy for PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP and a member of its UK Main Board and
European Consuitancy Board

2  Andrew Darby

Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Appointed to the Board in August 2006 He joined Active Risk from Misys Plc, where he was a Business Unit
Finance Director within the Banking Division He held several semior financial posittons whilst at Misys, including
CFO of Misys Risk Management Systems in Galifornia and European Financial Controlier His earler career was
at Generall SpA and English and American Group Pic He gualified as a Chartered Accountant with Coopers &
Lybrand

3. Alastair Gordon

Senior Independent Non-executive Director and Chairrnan of the Audit Committee

Appointed to the Board in November 2008 He was CFO of SDL plc for ten years until 2008 and remained on
the board until early 2010 Pror to that he spent ten years with Bensford plc which included three years as CFO
for the USA operations His early career was spent as a Chartered Accountant with Arthur Andersen Alastar was
also a Non-exacutive Director of Altenan plc and Chairman of the Audit Committee untl January 2012

4, lain Johnston

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board in December 2011 tain has held a number of non-executive positions as well as founding
several businesses In the technology sector He has a strong sales and marketing background with experience
of both the UK and the USA markets in a variety of roles at ali levels lain 15 also a Non-executive Director of
internetq Plc He was Deputy Charman of Altenan Plc until October 2011, having co-founded the business in
1897 and was also CEQO of the Loawy Group Ltd until the sale of the business in July 2011

12
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Directors’ Report

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report, together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2012 set out on pages 28 to 55

Principal Activities

Active Risk Group Plc 1s a public mited company, lisled on the Alternative investment Market (‘AtM') of the
London Stock Exchange, ncorperated and domicied in England, specialising In Risk Management software It is
commulied to achieving customer success and market leadership

The outlook and information that fulfil the requirements of the business review can be found In the Charrman’s
Statement, Business Review, Financial Review and Enterpnse Risk Management Review on pages 3 to 10

Results
The results include those of Active Risk Group Plc and its subsidianes for the full year

The loss on ordinary actvities before taxation amounted to £1 71m (2011 profit £1.07m) The loss after taxation
was £1 75m (2011 profit £1 01m)

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 £nil) Qur focus
1s to build cash reserves that are appropnate for the scale of our business

Future Developments
These are described in the Business Review on pages 5to 7

Research and Development

The Company has an active programme of research and development The total research and development costs
expensed for the year appear 1n note 7 to the financial statements

Directors
The following have been Directors of the Company during the year in question

Lynton Barker

Alastarr Gordon

lain Johnston {appomted 21 December 2011)
Peter Morgan (retired 1 Aprit 2012)

Andrew Darby

Retirement, Election and Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Assocration, the Directors retinng by rotation at the Annual General Meeting are
Alastar Gordon and Lynton Barker who, beng elgble, offer themselves for re-election lain Johnston's
appomntment will also be ratified at the AGM

13
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Directors’ Report continued

Share Capital

Details of the share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2012 are set out in note 18 Ali of the shares are
ardinary shares and there are no restrictions on voting rghts There are no restnctions on the transter of shares
in the Company Including irnitations en the holding of shares There are no requirements to obtain the approval
of the Company or of other holders prior to a transfer of shares

Annual General Meeting

The notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) will be sent separately to shareholders The AGM will be held at
10 00 arm on Wednesday, 27 June 2012 at tinnCap's offices at 60 New Broad Street, London EC2M 1.JJ

Policy on Payment of Creditors

It 15 the Company and Group policy to pay invoices In accordance with the agreed terms  The average creditor
days for the Group are 40 days (2011 48 days)

Substantial Shareholdings
As at 20 May 2012 substanttal shareholdings declared to the Company, are as follows

Nicholas Denning 17 930%
BlackRock Merrit Lynch Investment Managers 12 18%
Richard Higgs 11 99%
Herald investment Management Ltd 8 99%
Octopus Investments Lid g 78%
Invesco Perpetual 8 96%
ISIS Equity Partners 5 680%

Financial Instruments
The Group's policy on the use of financial instruments and its financial nsk management procedures are disclosed
In notes 4 and 17

Heaith and Safety

The Group strives to provide and maintan a safe environment for all employees, customers and visitors to its
premises and to comply with relevant health and safety legistaton In addition, the Group ams to protect the
health of employees with suitable, specific work-based strategies, seeking to mimmise the nsk of inury from
group achivity and ensuring that systems are in place to address health and safety matters The Group also
encourages the Involvernent of employees and ams for continual improvement in health and salety malters
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Directors’ Report continued

Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsiiiily extends across every aspect of our busingss, from how we trade, develop our
products and manage our offices, o how we treat and respect cur customers, employees, nexghbours and
planet Indeed, the very nature of cur business 1 about enhancing responsibility and efficiency in business and
helping cusiomers understand therr own corporate, social and ethical responsipiities

The principal corporate responsibiity challenges Active Risk faces can be categornised nto workplace,
environmental and commurity 1ssues The key topics, which are monitored by the Board for the whole business,
are

» The skills and competence of the workforce and employee satisfaction and motivation,
s Customer service and satisfaction,

s Businass partner and supplier relationships,

¢ |mpact upon the local communities in which we work,

*  Shareholder value,

s Energy use and efficiency. carbon and waste management

Employees
As a knowledge based business, the talent, potential and welfare of our workforce 1S our number one prionty

We believe our corporate values, which are co-operation and ¢ollaboration, integrity, creatvity and rugh standards
and qguality, underpin our ability to achieve success Each of these values is very human and creates the culture
in which we manage the people and resources in owr business

HR Management s primanily tasked with supporting our business goals by attracting, retaining and developing
the most talented people availlable to us We promote an open culture and encourage the involvernent of all staff
in the development of the business We recogruse and reward our staff for ther effort and contnbution towards
achievement of individual obiectives in support of the Group's goals

We are committed to prowiding our staff with good career development and fraining opportunities, providing fair
and effective remuneration policies and rewarding employees in the success of the business The diversity of our
Group and the initiatives we have implemented for providing a flexible working environment support our principle
of respect for the indwvidual Staff members are encouraged through HR processes to discuss their progress and
therr ambitions with their managers, who in turn are tasked with nurtunng their teams We recruit talented pecple
with an interest in furthenng therr careers and worlang within a professional environment Wherever possible we
develop staff and promote from within

Equality of Opportunity

All apphications for employment are treated with full, farr and equal consideration Job offers are entirely based on
mernit taking into account aptitude and capabiily to carry out each role based on a defined job specification The
Group has an excellent reputation for diversity and recognising and making the best use of all of its employees’
skills In the event that an employee became disablad, the Group would do its utmost to retain the employes by,
wherever possible, providing an environment adapted for thewr needs This could mean providing specially
adapted working faciities, home working faciities or re-training it 1s the policy of the Group that all job
opportuntties, career development, traning and career advancement opportunthies are avalable to ali employees

15
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Directors’ Report continued

Environment

Qur operational day-to-day activites are mostly office based, and by therr nature, generally have minimal impact
on the environment However, we are keen to energetically encourege sound emvironmental practices We
recognise this as a respensible approach to protecting the environment and as an effective cost management
practice

We mantain environmental awareness within the business by advising employees on how to modify therr work
practices for environmental iImpravement and by including our recyclng practices i our employee induchon
programme

We encourage all of our managers to ensure that they and ther teams minimise waste and recycle wherever
possible and as a result management sends regular team reminders This ncludes, but 1s not mited to recycling
paper, cardboard boxes, toner carindges and computer hardware. We have provided recyckng stations for all
types of paper throughout our offices

The Group mantains a working environment which comples with all current envircnmental legislation including
the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment (WEEE) directive We have a relationship with a suppher to recycle
our computing hardware

We actively try to minimise our transport reguirements Managers and staff are asked to consider carefully
alternative ways of conducting business before travelling long distances Ve make extensive use of e-mail and
tele-conference facilities to avoid non-essential travel

£mployee-ted schemes are supported by the business (e g promoting energy efficiency via communication of
the Carbon Trust) It 1s corporate policy for all non-essential computers, monitors and penpheral devices 1o be
switched off avernight, and all ighting 18 switched off overnight

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the directors’ report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and reguiations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financia! year, Under that law the
drectors have, as required by the AIM Rules of the London Stock Exchange, elected to prepare the group
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adapted by the European
Unioh and have also elected to prepare the parent company financial statements in accordance with those
standards Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and far view of the state of affars of the company and the group and of the profit or loss of
the group for that penod

In preparng these financial statements the cirectors are required to
o select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

o make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

& state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union,

s prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 15 mappropriate to presume that the
company and the group wil continue in business

The directors are responsible tor keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the
company's transactions, to disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posttion of the company
to enable them to ensure that the financial stalements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the group and hence for taking reascnable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties
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Directors’ Report continued

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and ntegnty of the corporate and financal information included
on the company’s website Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissermunation of the
financial statements and other information included N annual reporis may differ from legislation in other
junsdictions

Auditor

So far as the Drrectors are aware, there 18 no relevant audit information, that is, information needed by the
Company’s auditor .n connect:on with prepanng ther report, of which the Company’s auditor 18 unaware, and the
Drrectors have taken alf steps that they ought to have taken in order to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that information

The auditor, PKF (UK) LLP, has indicated therr wilhingness to continue in office, and a resolution to appoint PKF
(UK) LLP as auditors to the Company will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

Going Concern

The Group's business actmties, together with the factors tkely to affect its future development, performance and
cash position are set out in the Business and Financial Reviews on pages 5 tc ¢ In addition, notes 4 and 17 to
the financial statements nclude the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for managing Ifs capitai; its
financial nsk management objectives, details of its financial instruments and hedging actvities, and 1ts exposures
to credit nsk and liquidity risk

The Group has £3 3m of cash at year end together with long term contracts with a number of customers across
different geographic areas and industries As a conseguence, the Directors believe that the Group can manage
its business nisks successfully despite the current economic outlook

Tha Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources 1o continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting n
prepanng the annual financial statements

This report was approved by the Board on 29 May 2012 and signed on its behalf by

82%" of I%

Andrew Darby
Chief Financral Officer
29 May 2012
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Corporate Governance

The Company 15 quoted on the Alternative Investment Market of the London Stock Exchange ('AIMY) The
regulatory requirements of AIM do not require the Company to follow the Combined Code which applhes to fully
Listed companies Neveriheless, the Company is commiltted to high standards of corporate govemance to the
extent that it 13 practicable and appropriate for a Group of our size

The Board

The Beard comprises an Executive Chairman, Lynton Barker, one Executive Director, Andrew Darby, and two
mdependent Non-execuive Directors, Alastar Gordon and lan Johnston Alastair Gordon 1s the Semor
independent Director The Board collectively has a wide range of relevant business, financial and international
experience which 1s considered wvital to the success of the Group Each of the Directors has significant knowledge
of the technology business combined with general business skills

Lynton Barker was appointed Executive Chairman n Aprl 2010 He continues in this role, effectively combining
the strategic role of the Chairman with the operational responsibiities of the Chief Executive Andrew Darby has
continued in his combined role of Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer Lynton Barker's combined
roles do not conform with the Combined Code Section A2 but the Board consider 1t 1s in the best interests of the
Group to mamtain thus small core executive team for the immediate future The continuation of this jont role 1s
reviewed regularly, as are the mix of executive and non executive board members

The Board considers that the Non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Code In
assessing ndependence, the Board weighs a number of factors including whether each non-executive director
1s objective, provides a challenges to management, is prepared to challenge the views of others, demonstrates a
good understanding of the business, has the besl interests of the Group in mind and has no commercial or
employment relationships or crcumstances with the Group that are hkely to affect hus judgement

The Code calls for the re-election of one third of the directors at each AGM Accordingly Lynton Barker and
Alastar Gordon are standing for re-election The Board considers that both Alastar and Lynton provide the
operaticnal knowledge and contmuity required to help fulfil our current strategy

The appontment of lain Johnston to the Board 1s aiso to be ratified at the AGM

The Non-executive Directors fulfil a vital rofe m corporate accountability by bringing ther independent judgement
to bear on 1ssues brought before the Board and Board commiltees They bnng considerable knowledge and
experence from other areas of business and their iews carry significant weight in the Board's decisions They
also meet as a group from tme to time without the Executive Directors being present to consider the performance
of the Executive Directors

The Board met 11 times throughout the year All the necessary information is supplied to the directors on a timely
basis to enable them to discharge ther duties effectively The Board has a statement of responsibiiies and 1s
presented with an agenda and supporting documentation in sufficient time for review and conslideration prior o
each Board meeting It 15 responsible for the overall management of the Group and the approval of its long term
ohjectives and strategy

The Board has a formal schedule of matters speacifically reserved for decision by it, thus ensuring that it exercises
control over appropriate strategic, financial, operational and compliance ssues At these meetings the Board
reviews trading performance, ensures adequate financing, monitors strategy, examines mvestrment and
acquisition opporiunities and discusses reports to shareholders The Non-executve Directors can also take
independent advice as appropriate at the Company’s expense
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Corporate Governance continued

Each Committee of the Board has written terms of reference which have each been reviewed by the relevant
Committee in the last year Attendance at Board and Commilies meetings was as follows

Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Commuttee

Number of meetings 11 3 3
Lynton Barker 11 2 3
Andrew Darby 10 3 3
Alastar Gordon 11 3 3
Pster Morgan 9 2 2
tain Johinston 4 1 1

fan Johnston has atlended all of the meetings of the Board and 1ts Commmuiitees since hus appontment in
December 2011

Board Evaluation

The performance of the Board and 1ts sub-committees i1s evaluated annually by the Board as a whole through
completion of a formal questionnaire The results of the questionnare are then discussed by the Board and
appropriate actions are taken The performance of the Executive Chairman s reviewed by the Non-executive
Drrectors and the results discussed with the Executive Chawman by the Servor Independent Director

Tramning

The Executive Chairman 1 responsible for ensunng that any new Board member 1s equipped to fulfil lis or her
duties and rasponsibilities Directors are kept up to date with any significant changes m corporate law and
governance and financial and accounting matters

Management Commitice

The Board has established a Management Committee which compnses the Executive Directors together with
other senor Executives of the Group They meet monthly to discuss strategic and operational matters and the
key ssues from the meetings are presented to the Board

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Caommittee comprses the two non-executive Directors and 1s now chared by lain Johnston
having 1aken over the role dunng the year from Peter Morgan It met on three occasions in the past year It reviews
the remuneration of each of the Executive Directors and sets the scale and structure ¢f ther remuneration and
other benefits It also reviews and discusses the rermuneration of the other serior Executives with the Executive
Charman The Remuneration Committee report can be found on pages 22 ~ 25

Nominabion Committee

The Charman of the Remuneration Committee leads Board discussions relating to Board structure and Board
appointments when necessary The Nomination Commitiee met once durng the year to discuss the appointment
of lan Johnston, all tha current Directors and non-executive Directors were present

Audit Committee

The Audit Commiitee comprises the two non-executive directors and 18 chaired by Alastar Gordon, who has
recent relevant CFO financial expenence within the pubhc company software sector Directors and auditor attend
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Corporate Governance continued

the meetings by invitation to support the Committee in carrying cut its responsibiliies The Audit Committes met
three times in the last financial year

The Audit Committee 18 responsible for reviewing a wide range of financial matters including the intenm and
annual financial statements before thelir submission to the Board and monitoring controls, which are in force to
ensure the integnity of the financial information reported o the shareholders The Audit Committee s responsible
for the appointment of the external auditors and ther remuneration both for audit and, where considered
approprate, non-audit work and discusses the nature and scope of the audit In the past year the Audt
Committee has specifically reviewed the revenue recognition policy as applied to all major kcence agreements,
the terms of parinership agreements and the establshment and/or release of provisions and estimates

The Committee recognises that the independence of the Group’s auditor 1s of paramount importance to
shareholders and regularly reviews the level of non-audit work being performed by the auditor i ensure that they
remain independent The Audit Committee also consults the auditor in the absence of Executive management at
the culmination of each Commiitee meesting in order to obtan mdependent advice and discuss the performance
of the Executive management Audit and non-audit fees paid or payable to the auditor in the year under review
are set out in note 7 The Audit Committee have reviewed the work, performance and independence of the
auditor and consider it appropriate that a resolution be put to the Annual General Meeting to re-appoint them

The Group does not have an internal audt function In the opinion of the Audit Commuttee and the Board, the
Iimied scale and complexity of the business does not warrant the establishment of a separate, internal audt
function at this tma The position s kept under review and the audtors are consulted with regard to the
expenence of similar organisations

Internal Controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of intemal controls The Board monitors the
effectiveness of the Group's internal controls on an annual basis Including operational, financial, comphance and
nsk management controls The key controls are designed to miigate risk rather than elminate it and are as
follows:

o Comprehensive financial planning and reporling and a detailed annual budget, which 15 approved by the
Board, monthly reporting of actual results aganst budget and reporting against key financial and
performance objectives,

° Monthly performance reviews by the Executive Charman and the Management Committee,

@ Estabhshed procedures and controls with the Group [T systems designed to protect the securty of the
Group data and provide disaster recovery arrangements (with annual reviews and updates},

° Controls for all acqusitions, mvestmeants and capital expenditure with clear authonsation levels:

° Maintenance of the Group's 1SO 9001 accraeditation dnving regular internal reviews, checks and mandatory
annual audits I sales and marketing, project management, health and safety, office management,
environmental and human resources,

° Procedures for the escalation of matenal risks from the Management Committee to the Board,
° Operation of a structured system of nsk management throughout the business

The internal control systems continue to be reviewed by the Board and the Audit Committee and developed
where necessary

Relations with Shareholders

The Company acknowledges the tmportance of mamntaining good communications with its investors This 15
principally effected by the Executive Charman and CFO through presentation and dialogue with shareholders,
institutions, brokers and media particularly following the intenm and preliminary results announcements Their
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views are communicated to the Board In addition the Non-executive Directors meet with major shareholders to
ascertain any concerns or questions that they may have with regard to the performance of the Group and the
executve management

The principal communications with pnvate mvestors are through the Company's website (www activerisk com),
the annual report and financial statements, the intenm statement and AGM. All the directors aim to attend the
AGM, which provides shareholders with the opportunity to question the Executive Charrman and the Board as
well as the ndependent Non-axecutive Director Chairmen of the Board Commitiees

By order of the Board

Andrew Darby
Chief Financial Officer
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Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy of the Group 15 designed to attract, retam and motivate high calibre executives and
protessionals through competitive salary and incentive packages that are inked to both individual and Group
performance Thig recogrises that these people are key to the ongoing success of the business The mux of
performance related and non-performance related remuneration s designed to incentivise Directors and align
thewr Interests with those of shareholders, but not to detract from the goals of corporate governance The policies
and details of these elements are given In the sections below

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Commitiee is a committee of the Board of Directors and operates under the terms of reference
endorsed by the Board The Committee currently consists of two independent Non-executive Directors, chaired
by lain Johnston By invitation, the CGommuitee IS also attended by the Company Secretary, the Human Rescurces
Director, the CFO and the Executive Charman

Remuneration Information

The Remuneration Comruiiee agrees ihe base salary, performance bonus, share options, pension, permanent
health, critcal iiness, ke assurance, car allowances and private health benefits for Executive Directors and the
senior management leam

Base Salary

Salaries are assessed agamnst the Group’s policy of being within the median of basic salarnes and the upper
quartie for on target performance for Execulive Directors in comparable companes Executive Directors’ salarnes
are reviewed In Apri each year For the current year the Executive Directors salaries reman at the same level as

in the year to March 2012

Performance Bonus

Bonus enttlement 1s currently related to the operating profit performance of the Group For the year ended
a1 March 2012 no performance bonus was paid to the Executive Directors or Execltive Management For the
year ending 31 March 2013, bonuses for Executive Directars and Managernent will be paid In full on achievement
of performance targets in excess of market expectations and pro-rata in-between The bonus target for the
Executive Chairman and COQ/CFO will be 100% and 50% of ther salanes respeciively

Retirement Benefits

The Group provides pension coniributions of 10% of annual salary to Executive Drectors to mvest In a fund of
therr choice Although he is entitled 1o receive this and other benefits below, Lynton Barker currently waives this

entitlement

Other Benefits
On joining the Group, Executive Directors are provided with life assurance, cntical ilness cover, permanent heaith
nsurance cover, private health cover and car allowances

Share Options

Share options {both Enterprise Management Incentive ('EM!’} options and Unapproved ('Non-EMI’) options) are
granted in accordance with the Employee Share Option Plan {{ESOP') Under the ESCP, options are granted with
a fixed exercise price equal (0 the market pnce of the shares under option at the date of grant The contractual
ife of an option Is 10 years Options granted under the ESOP become exercisable on the third anniversary of the

22




s'AEhve
Riskg.q,
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date of grant Normally such grants are made at the time of recruitment and vest based upon Group and
individual performance

EM! options are issued in accordance with statutory imits Where ophions are issued in excess of EMI imits, non-
EM! options are awarded

Options granted to the Executive Directors are subject to operating profit performance targets and these details
are set out below under the heading ‘Long Term [ncentive Award'

Share option pool

Al 31 March 2012, the share option pool totalled 4,584,578 options This compnsed 3,191,728 of options
representing 10% of the Company’s 1ssued shares, 192,850 options that had been ssued prior to the 2005
flotation and 1,200,000 options approved for issue to the group CED To date 4,398,187 options have been
granted

Directors’ Service Contracts

The Exscutive Directors have service contfracts with notice periods of six months., The independent Non-
executive Directors currently have or had service contracts of either one or three months’ notice. All new
contracts for the independent Non-executive Directors will have three months' notice

The detalls of the service contracts of those who served as Directors durng the year are

Contract Notice
Name date penod
Peter Morgan 01/08/2004 1 month
Alastar Gordon 01/11/2008 3 months
Ancirew Darby 04/07/2006 6 months
Lynton Barker 01/11/2008 6 months
lan Johnston 01/12/2011 3 months
Directors’ Remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2012

Total Pension
Basic Benefits emoluments Contnbutions

Salary Fees mkind 2012 2011 2012 2071
£000s E£000s £000s £000s L£000s £000s £000s

Executive

L. Barker 175 - - 175 240 - -
A Darby 176 - 15 190 240 17 i5
Non-Executive

A Gordon - 30 - 30 30 - -
P Morgan - 25 - 25 25 - -
{ Johnston - S - 9 - - -

350 64 15 429 535 17 15

Benefits In kind are calculated in terms of UK taxable values where they are not paid through the payroll For
Andrew Darby these are cntical illness cover, private health insurance and car allowances
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Directors’ Interests

There were no significant contracts subsisting during or at the end of the year with the Company or any of ts
subsidianes, other than service contracts, detalled above, in which any Director 1s, or was, materally interested

f.ong Term Incentive Award

Share options may be granted to Executive Directors at the discretion of the Remuneration Commuttee, as part
of a long term incentive plan ('LTIP’) New arrangements were agreed at the 2010 Annual General Meeting and
put in ptace during the year to 31 March 2011 These provide long term incentive awards for Lynton Barker and
Andrew Darby (1) to ensure an appropnate balance within the remuneration package of fixed and vanable pay
and (2) to dnive high long-term performance against the Company’s key vatue driver (operating profit ~ see below)

Lynton Barker was granted awards over 1,200,000 shares with an exercise price of 33 5p
Andrew Darby was granted awards over 800,000 shares with an exercise price of 33 Sp

The mcentive award plan has been designed to aperate in the three financial years, ending March 2011, March
2012 and March 2013 Each year 1s a discrete performance peniod Options vest according to the operating profi
achieved as set out in the table below In FY2012 the operating loss was £1 61m and so none of the oplions
vested (2011 profit of £603,000 and 19% respectively) In FY2013 options will only vest 1o the extent that the
March 2011 profit figure of £603,000 1s exceeded and an increment will be earned for the balance of profit above
this figure

Operating profit % of award
achieved that vests
£500,000 15
£1,000,000 35
£1,500,000 55
£2,000,000 75
£2,500,000 100

Operating profit 15 defined as operating profit before share based paymenits, exceptional items, 1ax and interest

Where possible, awards under the LTIP have been structured as EM! options  LTIP awards in excess of the EM!
statutory Imits have been granted as a combined award, comprising Non-EMI options and an arrangement
whereby the indviduals acquired an nterest in Corpany shares held by the Active Risk Employse Benefit Trust
{('EBT’) The EBT was established in June 2010 for the prmary purpose of satisfying future ohiigahons, as they
arise, In respect of the exercise of share options and LTIP awards

Iy addition to the performance targeis set aut above, the part of the LTIP award that requires ndviciuals to acquire
an Interest In shares held by the EBT 1s subject to a share price performance hurdie valus of £1 Thus, if the hurdle
value of £1 1s not achieved, but the performance conditions have been met, the interest will have no value and
the balance of the LTIP award will be delivered via the non-EMi options

in respect of the options granted above to Lynion Barker and Andrew Darby, 358,208 were 1ssued to each as
EMI options and the remainder were 1ssued as combined awards

No Director exercised a long term incentive award durning the year

The market pnce of the Company’s shares at the end of the financial ysar was £0 315 (2011 £0 415} and the
range during the year was £0 315 — £0 545 (2011* £0 435 — £EQ 285)
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Interests in Shares
The Interasts of the Drectars In the shares of the Company were

Active Risk Group plc — ordinary shares 1p

Lynton Barker
Andrew Darby
Alastair Gordon
lain Johnston

All Directors' Interests are beneficially held

By order of the Board

fain Johnston
Chamwrman Remuneration Commuittee

1 Aprit
2011

166,250

50,000
78,125

37 March 28 May
202 2012

556,250 556,250
50,000 50,000
78,125 78,125
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Active Risk Group plc

We have audited the financial statements of Active Risk Group Plc for the year ended 31 March 2012 which
comprise the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the group and parent company statements of
financial position, the group and parent company statements of cash flows, the group and parent company
staternents of changes 1n equity and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied
in their preparation 1s applcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (iFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as apphed in accordance with the
provisions of the Companles Act 2006

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2008 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permitted by iaw, we do not accept or assume responsibiily to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have farmed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the slatement of directors’ responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a trua and fair view Our responsibiity
1S to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audt involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the group’s and
the parent company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and adeguately disclosed, the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the direclors, and the overall presentalion of the
financial statements In addition, we read all tha financiad and non-hnancial information in the annual report to
identify matenal inconsistencies with the audited financial stalements If we become aware of any apparent
matenal misstatements or inconsistencias we consider the imphcations for our report

Opimon on financial statements

In our opinion

o the financial staternents give a true and farr view of the state of the group’s and the parent company’s affairs
as at 31 March 2012 and of the group’s loss for the year then ended,

. the group financial statements have besn properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union;

° the parent company financial statements have been property prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted
by the European Union as applied in accordance with the prowisions of the Companies Act 2008; and

° the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information gven in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements
areg prepared 15 consistent with the financial staterments
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of
Active Risk Group plc continued

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the foliowing matters where the Companies Act 2006 regquires us to report to you ff,
1IN our opIron

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us, or

¢ the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting racords and relurns, or
. certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made, or

we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

PKF(:){E) LLe

Stuart Collins (Senfor statutory audior)
for and on behalf of PKF (UK) LLE Statutory auditor

Guildford, UK
29 May 2012
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Consoilidated Statement of Comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Yaar ended Year ended
31 March 31 March

2012 2011

Notles £000s £000s
Revenue 5 7,252 8,868
Cost of sales 7 (3,497) (3,336}
Gross profit 3,755 5,632
Administrative expenses 7 (2,281) (1,665)
Seling and distribution costs 7 (3,196) (2,800)
Operating (loss)/profit (1.722) 1,067
Analysed as follows
Operating (loss)/profit befora exceptional tems (1,807) 603
Exceptional items (included in administrative expenses) 7 - 5
Share based payments {charges)/credits 19 (115) 459
Operating (loss)/profit {1,722) 1,067
Finance income 8 15 5
Finance costs 8 (2 3)
Net finance income 13 2
{Loss)/profit before income tax (1,709) 1,069
income tax expensa 9 (43) {64)
(Loss)/profit and total coinprehensive income for
the financiaf year attnbutable to owners of the parent {1,752) 1,005
({Loss)/earnings per share attnbutable to the owners of the parent
during ths year from continuing operations
Basic 10 (5 6p) 35p
Diluted 10 (5 6p) 34p

The Company has elected to take the exemption avalable under the Companies Act 2006 to not present the
parent company statement of comprehensive iIncome The profit for the parent company for the year was £128k
(2011 E111k)

The notes on pages 32 to 55 are an Integral part of these financlal statements
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Statements of Financial Position
at 31 March 2012

Group Group Company Company

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011

£000s £O0O0s £000s £000s
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 229 251 - —
Investment in subsidiary 12 - - 937 823
Prepayments and accrued income 13 69 77 - -
Totai non-current assets 298 328 937 823
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 13 2187 4,040 4,987 4,867
Cash and cash equivalents 3,343 2,316 1,750 378
Total current assets 5,480 6,356 6,737 5,245
Total assets 5,778 6,684 7.674 6,068
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payabiles 18 (3,606) (4,132 - M
Current income tax labilities (19) n - -
Total current liabilities (3,625) 4,143) - {1
Non-current habilities
Deferred income and bark loan 16 (65) (181) - -
Total habilities (3,690) (4,324} - (1)
Net assets 2,088 2,360 7.674 6,067
Equity
Capital and reserves attributable to equity
holders of the company
Crdinary shares 18 333 303 333 303
Share premium 18 4,654 3,319 4,654 3,319
Merger reserve 18 486 486 - -
Other reserve 18 - - 721 607
Own shares 18 (14) (14) - —
Accumulated ({loss)/profit (3,371) {1,734) 1,966 1,838
Total equity 2,088 2,360 7.674

6,087

he financia statements were approved and authorised for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 28 May 2012 and
were signed ¢n its behalf by

Andrew Darby
Chief Financial Officer

A4 San,

ages 32 to 55 are an integral part of these financal statements
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Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit for the year
Adjustments for
Depreciation
imparment loss on trade recevables
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equiprment
Share based payment transactions
Income tax expense
Net finance income

Changes in
Trade and other recevables
Trade and other payables
Prowisions

Cash {used ) operations
Interest pad
Tax pad

Net cash (used in} operating activities

Cash fiows from investing actities

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Interest receved

Net cash {used in)/from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayments on bank lcan

Proceeds from issue of share options
Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash squivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Notes

i

w

8]

1

18
18

Group

Group Company  Company
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended

371 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000s £Q00s L£000s £000s
{1,752) 1,005 128 111
165 167 - -
97 - - -

3 29 - -

115 (459) - _
43 64 - -
(13) 2) (130) (111)
{1,342 804 ) -
1,804 (1,478) (120} (1,583)
(579 792 {1) -
- (232) - -
(1m7 (114) (123) (1,583)
2 @) - -
27 (216)] - -
(146) (202) (123) (1,593)
(148) {199) — -

1 100 - -

156 5 130 111
(132) {04) 130 111
(©0) (63) - -

3 - 3 -
1,362 792 1,362 8086
1,305 729 1,365 806
1,027 433 1,372 676)
2,318 1,883 378 1,054
3,343 2,316 1,750 378

The notes on pages 32 1o 55 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statements of Changes in Equity
Group
Ordinary Share Merger Own  Retained Total
Notes shares  premium resenve shares earnings equity
£000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
At 1 Apni 2010 263 2,653 486 - (2,280) 1,022
Profit and total
comprehensive iIncome - - — - 1,005 1,005
Share based payment credit - - - - (459) (459)
lssue of share capital 40 766 - (14) — 792
At 31 March 2011 303 3,319 486 (14) {1.734) 2,360
Loss and total
comprehensive income - - - - {1,752) {1,752)
Share based payment cost - - - - 116 1156
Issue of share capital 18 30 1,335 - - - 1,365
At 31 March 2012 333 4,654 486 {14} (3,371) 2,088
Company
Ordinary Share Other  Retained Total
shares  premium reserves earnings equrty
Notes £000s £000s E000s £000s £000s
At 1 Apni 2010 263 2,653 1,063 1,727 5,606
Profit and tota!
comprehensive income - - - 131 111
Share based payment credil - - (456) - {456)
Issue of share capttal 40 766 - - 806
At 31 March 2011 303 3,319 607 1,838 6,067
Profit and total
cornprehensive INcome - - - 128 128
Share hased payment cost - - 114 - 114
Issue of share capital 18 30 1,335 - - 1,365
At 31 March 2012 333 4,654 721 1,966 7,674

The notes on pages 32 to 55 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

1. Reporting entity

Active Risk Group Pic (‘the Company') and its subsidianes (fogether 'the Group’) are engaged in developing and
distributing an Enterprise Risk Management software product, Active Risk Manager

The company Is a public imited company which 18 hsted on the Altemative Investment Market of the London
Stock Exchange and is incorporated and domiciled in the UK The address of its registered office 1s 1 Grenfell
Road, Maidenhead, Berkshire SLE 1HN, UK

The registered number of the company s 5424046

2. Basis of preparation and significant accounting estimates

The consolidated and Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Urion (IFRSs as adopled by the EU), IFRIC
mnterpretations and Companies Act 2006 applicable to Companies reporting under IFRS

These consolidated financial statements are presented m pounds stering which is the Company's functional
currency All financial information prasented mn pounds sterling 1s rounded to the nearest thousand

The preparation of financial statements n conformity with [FRS requires the use of certan critical accounting
estimates It also requires managemem to exercise its judgement i the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies

Information about critlcal judgements used in applying accounting policies and criical accounting estimates that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consohdated financial statements 1s included

below.

a) Revenue recognition
Revenue recognition and the assessment of the percentage of contract cormpletion achieved The Group
assesses contract progress and determines the proportion of contract work completed at the balance sheet
date In relation to the total contract works

b) Share based payment

The Group has equity-setiled share-based remuneratlon schemes for employess Employee services
receved, and the corresponding Increase in equity, are measured by reference to the far value of the equity
nstruments at the date of grant, using Black-Scholes modal, on the date of the grant based on certain
assumpticns Those assumptions are descnibed in note 19 and include, among others expected volatiity
and expected lfe of the oplions.

3. Accounting policies
The pnncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below These polcles have besn consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments, which have not been appled to these financial
statements, wil or may have an effect on the Group's future financial statements

IFRS 7 (Amended) — Transfers of Financiat Assets (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011),

Presentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income (Amendments to 1AS 1) (effective for annual penods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012)
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3

Accounting policies {continued)

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments, which have not yat been endorsed by the EU, are
effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial statements,

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,

IFRS 13 Far Value Measurement,

IAS 28 Investments n Associates and Joint Ventures,
Disclosures ~ Offsetting Financial Assets and Liabilities (Amendments to IFRS 7);

Offsetting Financial Assets and Finansial Liabilities (Amendments to 1AS 32) (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2014),

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (effective for annual penods beginning on or after 1 January 2015)

The Group 1s currently assessing the impact, if any, that these standards will have on the presentation of its
consolidated results

None of the other new standards, interpretations and amendments, which are effective for periods beginrung after
1 April 2012 and which have not been adopted early, are expected to have a matenal effect on the Group's future
financial statements

a)

Basis of consolidation

Active Risk Group Plc's consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of all the entities
over which the Group has conirol, namely Active Risk Ltd, Active Risk Pty Ltd, Active Risk Inc and Aclive
Risk Group plc Employee Benefit Trust

Subsidianes

Subsicharies are all eniities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareho!ding of more than one half of the voting nghts, The existence and
effect of potential voting rnights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing
whether the Group controls another entity Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control
1s transferred to the Group They are de-consoldated from the date that control ceases

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisiion of subsidianes by the Group The
cost of an acquisition 15 measured as the far value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabiities ncurred or assumed at the date of exchange Identifiable assets acqured and labilities and
contingent liabilities assumed tn a business combination are measured Intially at ther far values at the
acquisition date, imespective of the extent of any minority interest The excess of the cost of acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the identfiable net assets acquired 15 recorded as goodwill If the cost
of acquisiion 1s less than the far value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference 1s
recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive ncome Costs incurred In relation to an acquisition
are recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income as incurred

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated on consolidation Unrealised iosses are also elminated but considered an imparment indicator
of the assel transferred  Accounting policies of subsidianes have bsen changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group
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b)

c)

34

Accounting policies {continued)

Specal purpose entities

The Group has established an EBT as a special purpose entity (SPE) The Group does not have any direct
or indirect shareholdings i this entity An SPE 1s consolidated If, based on an evaluation of the substance
of its relationship with the Group and the SPEs nsks and rewards, the Group concludes that it controls the
SPE SPEs controlled by the Group were established under terms that impose strict mitations on the
decision-making powers of the SPEs management and that result in the Group recewing the majonty of the
benefits related 1o the SPEs operations and net assets, being exposed to the majonty of nisks incident to
the SPEs actmvities, and retaining the majornity of the residual or ownership nisks related to the SPEs or ther
assets

Revenue

Revenue represents the far value of the consideration recewed in respect of sales of software, professional
services and support sernices to external customers, net of value added tax

Revenue from the sale of the Group's own perpetual software ficences 18 recognised where there 1s
persuasive evidence of an agreement with a customer, delvery of the software has taken place, revenue
collection 1s probable, the fee 1s fixed and determinable and all contingencies relating to the sale have been
resolved Periodic software licenses are recognised over the penod to which they relate

Revenues from support contracts are recogrused rateably on a straight line basis over the term of the
contract when revenue collection 1s probable Revenues from hosting actvities are recognised over the
period of usage

Revenues from consultancy services are normally recognised as services are performed, on a time and
matenals basis when the Group has a right to constderation

Occaslonally consultancy projects are sold on a fixed price basls Revenue from fixed prnice contracts 1s
recognised under the percentage of completion method ('POC’} Under the POC method revenue is
generally recognised based on the services performed 1o date as a percentage of the total senvices 1o be
performed

If crcumstances anse that may change the onginal estmates of revenues, costs or extent of progress
towards completion, estimates are revised These rewisions may result n increases or decreases In
estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in ncome in the penod in which the circumstances that give
nse to the revision become known by management

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than pounds sterling are recorded at the rates of exchange prevalling at the
tme Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies are retransiated on a monthly basis
Exchange gamns and losses are included in the net profit or loss for the penod Non-monetary assets are
recorded at the rate prevailing when the asset was acquired Deferred revenues on support contracts are
recorded at the rate prevailing at the date of deferral

tems included i the financial statements for Group companes are measured using the currency of the
pnmary economic enviranment n which each entity operates, therr functional currency The consolidated
financial statements are presented in sterling

Each overseas operation translates foregn currency transactions into thesr own functional ¢currency at rates
ruling at the date of each transaction Foreign currency monetary assets and liabities are retranslated at
rates ruling at the reporting date, and currency translation differences are recognised n the statement of
comprehensive INncome




J’Ac.hve
Rislcn.ms.

Notes to the Financial Statements continued
for the year ended 31 March 2012

dj
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Accounting policies {continued)

On consoldation, the results of overseas operations are translated to pounds sterling at the average
exchange rate for the period, and their assets and habiihes are translated at exchange rates prevailing on
the reporting date

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equppment are stated at cost when acqured, less depreciaton, and provision for
impairment 18 made when appropriate

Depreciation 18 provided to write off the cost, less estimated residual values, of all property, plant and
eguipment, evenly over therr expected useful ives Ther expected useful Iives are as follows’

Fixtures and fitings — 3-5 years
Office equipment — 2-3 years

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal or retrernent of an asset 1s determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, and 1s recognised in the statement of
comprehensive Income at the tirne of sale

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite usetul e, for example goodwill, are not subject 10 amortisation and are tested
annually for imparment Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for imparrment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that any camying amount may not be recoverable An
impairment 10ss 18 recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds 1ts recoverable
amount The recoverable amount 1s the higher of an asset's far value less costs to sell and value in use For
the purposes of assessing mmpaiment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifizble cash flows {cash-generating urits) Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
imparment are reviewed for possible reversal of imparrment at each reporting date

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities, m respect of financial instruments, are recognised in the Group’s
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument

Trade recenvables

Trade recevables do not carry any interest and are stated at ther nominat value as reduced by approprate
allowances for estimated rrecoverable amounts Estimated rrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing
of the recewvable balances and historical experience Indmidual trade recewables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectable

Trade payables
Trade payables are intially recognised at farr value, which 1s the invoice value

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash egquivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call wath banks and other short-term
highly Iguid mvestments with onginat matunty of three months or less

Capital market and bank borrowings

Inferest bearing loans are nitially measured at far value (which 1s equal to cost at inception), and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost

35




Fhctive

Ri slclotes s

Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2012

g)

h)

i}

i

k)

36

Accounting policies {continued)
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified as equity Incremental costs directly attributabls to the 1ssue of ordinary shares
are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax effects

Repurchase, disposal and rerssua of share capital (treasury shares)

When share capital recogruised as equity 1 repurchased, the amount of the consideraton paid, which
includes directly attributable costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity When
treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received 1s recognised as an ncrease in
equity, and the resulting surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented i the share premium

Deferred tax

Deferred tax s the future tax consequences of temporary differences between the carrying amounts and tax
bases of assets and labilites shown on the statement of financial postion The amount of deferred tax
provided 1s based on the expected manner of recovery or settiement of the camrying amount of assets and
habiities, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date

A deferred tax asset 18 recognised only to the extent that 1t 15 probable that future taxable profits will be
avallable aganst which the asset can be utlised The carrying amount of the deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it 13 no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be avaiable to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax balances are not discounted

Current income fax

The current income tax charge 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date in the countrnes where the Company’s subsidares operale and generate taxable
income Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation s subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropnate on the
basis of amounts expected to be pad to the tax authonties

Exceptional items

The Drectors consider that items of Income or expense which are materral and non-recurring by virtue of
therr nature and amount should be disclosed separately if the financial statements are to farrly present the
financial posiion and financial performance of the Group The Directors labe! these items collectively as
‘exceptional items’

lLeases

Leases in which a significant portion of the nsks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-ine basis over the penod
of the lease The Group does not hold any assets under finance leases

Development expenditure

Costs associated with maintaining or upgrading exising computer software programmes are recognised as
an expense as incurred Where costs are directly associated with the development of new, unique and
identifisble software products controlled by the Group that will probably generate economic benefits
exceeding costs beyond one year, these amounts are capitalised as intangible assets
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Accounting policies {continued)
Fair value estimation

The carrying value less mpairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed 1o approximate
therr far values

Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group makes contributions to empleyees’ persenal pension plans on a defined contnbution basis The
charge in the statement of comprehensive income represents the amount of contrbuticns payable to the
schemes in respect of the accounting perod The Group has no further payment obhgations once the
contnbutions have been paid

Share based compensation

The Group currently operates an EMI share option scheme and an unapproved share option scheme under
which Dwectors and employees may be granted options to subscnbe for shares in the Group at an exercise
price not less than the market price at the tme of the grant The aim 1s to motvate and retaln employees
andd to align therr interests with those of the shareholders

The Group issues equity-settled share based payments to certan employees Equty-settied share based
payments are measured at far value at the date of grant The far value of the equity-settled share based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod to the statement of comprehensive
income, based on the Group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest At each reporting date the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected 10 vest It recognises the impact of the
revision to ongmal estmates, if any, In the statement of comprehensive mcome, with a correspending
adustment to eguity

The proceeds recewved net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nomnal
value) and share premium when the options are exercised

The grant by the Company of options over its egquity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertekings in the Group Is treated as a capial contribution The fair value of employee services receved,
measured by reference 10 the grant date fair value, 15 recognised over the vesting perod as an increase to
investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a correspending credit to equity Fair value 1s measured by use
of a Black-Scholes model

The Group provides for the expected liability for employer’s national nsurances on share option gains ansing
from unapproved share oplions over the period of performance

Dwidend distribution

Dwvidend distribution to the Company’s shareholders 1s recognised as a liability in the Group's financal
staternents in the penod in which the didends are approved by the Company’s shareholiders
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4. Financial risk management
Overview
The Group has exposure 1o the following risks from iis use of financial mstruments

a Credit nsk
. Liquichty risk
. Market risk

This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above nsks, the Group's objectives,
polcies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of capital Further
guantitative disclosures are included throughout these consolidated financial statements

Risk management framework

The Board of Dwectors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's rnisk
management framework In practice, responsibiity for managing the financial nsks of the Group s shared
between the Board of Directors, the Executrve Charman and the CFO The vanous responsibitties of each party
are set out in the Group's Treasury policy, and reviewed by the Board annually

The Group's risk management policies are established 1o identfy and analyse the nsks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk imits and contrels, and to monitor nisks and adherence to Iimits Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condiions and the Group’s activities

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Group’s nisk management
polcies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the nsk management framework i relation to the nsks
faced by the Group

Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations, and anses principally from the Group’s recevables from customers

The Group's exposure to credit nsk 1s influenced mamly by the indwvidual characteristics of each customer and
the exposure to credit nsk in this regard was the accounts receivable balance of £1 8m at the year end However,
the nature of the customer base and default nsk of the industry and country in which our customers operate also
have an influence on credit risk There has been an mparment loss of £105k recognised aganst customers this
year

The Group establiishes an allowance for mparment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of
trade and other recewvables The main component of this allowance is a specific loss component that relates to
indvidually significant exposures A collective loss component would be establshed for groups of similar assets
tn respect of losses that have besn incurred but not yet identified f considered necessary

The Group held cash and cash gquivalents of £3 3m at 31 March 2012 (2011 £2 3m), which represents 1ts
maximum credit exposure on these assets The cash and cash equivalents are held with the Group’s bankers, a
reputable financial institution

The overall maximum exposure to credit nsk s £5 1m (2011 £5 5m)
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4  Financial risk management {continued)

Liquidity nisk

Ligudiy nsk s the nsk that the Group will encounter difficulty i meeting the obligations associated with its
financial labilittes that are settled by delivenng cash or another financial asset The Group’s approach to managing
lquidity 1s to ensure, as far as possible, that ¢ will always have sufficient iquidity to meet its habilities when due,
under both normal angd stressed conditions, without incurnng unacceptable losses or nsking damage to the
Group's reputation

Typically the Group ensures it has sufficient cash on demand to meet the expected operational expenses for a
period of 80 days including the servicing of financrai obligations, this excludes the potential impact of extreme
arcumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters

The Group does not have any additional hnes of credit and has not had the need for them in the previous 36
monthg

Management of hquidity nisk includes cash flow forecasting in the annual business plan, regular reporting of cash
flow to the Board, regular analysis of movements in working capital, transfer of surplus cash to higher interest rate
deposit accounts or the money market, and restrictions on long-term deposits without further authonsation
During the year the Group has not requwed an overdraft facility and has no such facilities in place

Market risk

Market nisk 15 the nsk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and the equity
prices that will affect the Group's income The objective of market risk management is 10 manage and contro!
market nsk within acceptabls parameters, whife optimusing the return

{a) Foregn exchange sk
The Group 1s exposed to foreign exchange nisk on sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the respective functronal currencies of Group entities, primanly Pound Sterling {GBP) but also US
Dollars {USD) The currencies in which transactions are denominated are GBF, USD, Eurg, United Arab
Emirates Dirham (AED) and Australian Dellar

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency risk, when necessary Usually the Group
uses foraign exchange forward centracts to hedge large inflows of non-GBP funds where the funds have
been contracted for and where the timing of receipt has been determined

As the growth of the US business predicates the need to hold larger surplus funds in the US, management
can use foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge any foreign exchange nisk it believes needs to be
covered

At the year end the far value of outstanding foreigh exchange contracts was not considered to be materal
and consequently have not been accounted for in the financial statements

() Interest rate nsk
interest rate risk 15 the risk of a reduction in earnings as a consequence of adverse movements in interest
rates

The Group has cne outstanding loan with a balance of £55k (2011 £118k}) Given s size the Group's
exposure {0 changes In interest rales 1s considered low

Surplus cash funds are placed with the Group's bankers, who are a reputable financial institution and with

whom a review 1s carrded out annually With the structure of the Group's business, it 1S not envisaged that
interest rate nsk is a mayor issue for the company — especially n hght of the igudity controls in place
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4, Fmancial risk management (continued)
(c) Equiy price nsk

As the Group holds no available for sale equity secunties, equity price nsk 1s not currently an i1ssue for the
Group This is reviewed on an annual basis when the Board reviews the Risk management framework

Capital risk management

The Group's objectves when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shargholders and to mamtan an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital As the Group has a low level of borrowing, the Board considars the Group's net assets to be ils capital
The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital as well as the amount of dvidends paid to shareholders

During the year a further placing was carned out to improve the capital position of the Group

From time to time the Group purchases its own shares on the market, the timing of these purchases depends on
market prices Prmarnly the shares are intended to be used for issuing shares under the Group's share option
programme Buy and sell decisions are made on a speciic transaction basis by the Board, the Group does not
have a defined share buy-back plan

5 Segmental reporting

An operating segment 1s a component of the Group that engages in business activities fram which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating
deciston maker The whole of the Group's operations relate to the sale of ARM lcenses and related support As
such the Directors consider that alb of the Group's activities represent one reportable operating segment

The gecgraphical spiit of revenue from external customers 1s as follows

2012 2011
Revenue £000s £000s
United Kingdom 2,470 4,296
Europe 870 742
USA 2,553 2,741
Rest of the Worid 1,359 1,089
Total 7,252 8,868

A spiit of the revenue between the sub-components of icence sales, services and support 1s included within the
Business Review section of this Annual report on pages Sto 7

Revenue from one customer represents approximately £ 67m of the Group's total revenues for the current year
(2011, £2 4m)

Total assets are allocated based on where the assets are located

2012 2011
Jotal assets £000s £000s
United Kingdom 3,284 5,032
Europe 596 398
usa 1,324 1,157
Rest of the World 574 g9
Total 5,778 6,684
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5. Segmental reporting {continued)
Capital expenditure 1s allocated based on where the assels are located
2012 2017
Capital expenditure £000s E000s
United Kingdom 84 181
USA 64 8
Total 148 189
6. Employees and the Directors
The following refer to the Group only, as no staff are employed by the Company
Staff costs for the Group (including Directors) during the year were
2012 2011
£000s £000s
Wages and salaries 4,758 5,404
Social secunty costs 832 429
Share based payment charge/{credit) 115 {459)
Pension costs 226 219
Total 5,631 5,593
Average number of employees (including Directars) in the Group were
2012 2011
By actwty
Consutting and support 33 34
Seling and distribution 19 i4
Administration 11 4
Total 63 62
Directors Emoluments
2012 2011
£000s £000s
Aggregate emoluments 429 535
Pension contrnibutions 17 15
446 880
Employer social secuniy cosis 53 64
Total 499 614

The main board are the key management of the Group

Share-based paymenis charge refating to Directors tolal £56k (2011 credit of £436k) The number of Directors

to whom retrement benefits are accrung is 1 (2011 1)

The highest paid Director recewed aggregate emaluments of £130k (2011 £240k) and €17k (2011 £15k}

pension contnbutions in the year

During the year, the highest paid Director did not exercise any share options Details of the remuneration for each
director and the long term incentive scheme can be found in the Remuneration Report on pages 22-25
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7. Expenses by nature
(Loss)/profit before tax 1s stated after charging

Employee benefit expense (note 6)
Share based payments costs/(credits)
Depreciation costs and {gain)/loss on disposal of assets
Computer expenses

Bad debt expense

Operating lease rentals

Travel expenses

External contractors

Partner costs

Marketing expenses

Professtonal fees

Property expenses

Communication costs

Staff recruitment

Foreign exchange loss/(gamn)

Other costs

Total cost of sales, distribution costs and administrative expenses

2012 2011
£000s £000s
5,516 6,052
116 (459)
168 164
144 104
97 -
152 58
570 364
872 539
75 -
406 285
278 247
113 158
151 122
90 15
16 (43)
211 197
8,974 7.801

Included in the costs above were research and development costs of £1 94m {2011 £1 54m)

Exceptional item of €5k in the pnor year related to the final release of a property provisicn

Audtors’ remuneration

During the year the Group (nciuding its overseas subsidianes) obtained the following services from the Group's

auditor

Fees payable to the company's auditor for the audit of parent company and

consolidated financial statements

Fees payable to the company's auditor and its associates for other services
The audit of company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legistation

Rewview of internm results
Other services

Total

42

2012 2011
£000s £000s
12 12

20 20

4 4

- 2
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8 Net finance income
2012 2011

£000s £000s
Group
Finance costs
interest payable on bank loan 2) 3)
Total finance costs ) @
Finance income
Bank interest receivable 15
Total finance income 15
Net finance income 13
Company
Finance income
Intercompany loan interest recevable 122 108
Bank interest recevable 8 3
Total Finance mcome 130 111
9 Income tax expense

2012 20711

£000s £000s
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 26% {2011 28%j) based on (loss)/profit for the year - -
Overseas tax 43 64
Total tax charge on ordinary actwities 43 64

The income tax expense of £43k (2011 £64k) was primanly in respect of tax due In the US under the transfer
prcing arrangements In place between the US and UK and also due to withholding tax pad on overseas revenue

In the year that 1s not recoverable

The ctrent tax for the year 1s lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 26% (2011 28%)

43




FhActive

Riskese

Notes to the Financial Statements continued
For the year ended 31 March 2012

9. Income tax expense (continued)
The differences are explaned below

2012 2011
£000s £000s

{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before tax from continuing operations (1,709) 1,069
{Loss)/profit on ordinary activities before tax multipled by standard rate of

corporation tax of 26% (2011 28%) {444) 299
Effects of

— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (174) (325)
— Difference between capital allowances and depreciation 35 (1)
- Other timing differences 10 {49)
— Unused losses carned forward 584 93
- Qverseas profits taxed at tugher rate 8 2
— Overseas tax unrelieved 24 45
Total tax charge for the year 43 64

10. (Loss)/earnings per share

Basic {loss)/earnings per share is calcutated by dividing the (loss)/profit atirbutable to equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year

The diluted {loss)/earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the {(oss)/profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company by weighied average number of ordinary shares adjusted for the effects of diutive potential
ordinary shares at the year end

2012 2011
£000s £0C0s
{Loss)/profit from continuing operations attributable to equity holders of the company {1,752 1,005
Total (1,752) 1,005
2012 2011
Nurnber Number
Weighted average number of shares in issue 31,266,133 28,571,460
Dilution effect of share options - 841,061
Diluted weighted average number of shares in issue 31,266,133 29,412,521
Basic (loss)/earnings per share
From continuing operations attributable to the ordinary equity holders
of the company {5 6p} 35p
Attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company (5 6p) 3 5p
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
From continuing oparations attributable to the ordmary equity holders
of the company {5 6p} 34p
Attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the company (5 6p) 34p
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11. Property, plant & equipment
Fixtures and Office
Group fttngs  equipment Total
£000s £000s £000s
Cost
At 1 Apnl 2010 384 578 962
Additions 146 63 199
Disposals (233) (168} {401)
At 31 March 2011 297 463 760
Additions 64 84 148
Disposals (19) - (19
At 31 March 2012 342 547 889
Depreciation
At 1 Apnl 2010 123 491 814
Charge for the year 81 86 167
Disposals {100) 172) (272)
At 31 March 2011 104 405 509
Charge for the year 79 86 165
Disposals (14) - (14)
At 31 March 2012 169 491 660
Carrying amount
At 31 March 2012 173 56 229
At 31 March 2011 193 58 251
At 1 Apri 2010 261 87 348
No property, plant and equipment 1s held by the Company
12 Investments in subsidiaries
Company
£000s
Investment in subsidiary undertakings
At 1 April 2011 823
Capital contribution relating to share based payment 114
At 31 March 2012 937

Investments in Group undertakings are stated at cost as permitted by the Comparwes Act 2006 Where the relief
afforded under the Companies Act 2006 applies, cost is the aggregate of the nominal valug of the relevant
number of the Company's shares and the far value of any other consideration given to acquire the share capital

of the subsidiary undertakings

The caprial credit relating to share based payment relates to share options granted by the Company to employees
of subsidiary undertakings in the Group Refer to note 19 for further details on the Group’s share option scheme
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12. investments in subsidianes {continued)
Subsidiaries

Active Risk Limited
Active Risk Ply Limited
Active Risk inc

Country of
incorporation

UK
Australia
USA

Proportion
of equity
share capital
held and Principal
voting nghts actvities
100% ARM
100% Sales operations

100% Sales operations

A special purpose entity was set up for the benefit of all employees, Active Risk Group Pic Employee Benefit Trust
This company has also been inciuded in the consolidated accounts as the Group considers It has control over

the entity

The consolidated financial statements include the hnancial statements of the Company and of its subsichiary

undertakings

13. Trade and other receivables

Current trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables
Less provision for mparrment of rade receivables

Net trade recewvables

Loans to subsichanes
Prepayments and accrued income
Carporation tax recoverable

Total amount due within one year

Non-current trade and other receivables:
Prepayments and accrued income

All non-current recevables are due within 3 years from the reporting date

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000s £000s £000s £000s
1,867 3,199 - -
(115) (21) - -
1,752 3,178 - -
- - 4,985 4,867

385 860 2 -

- 2 - -
2,137 4,040 4,987 4,867
69 77 - -

The carrying values of all financial assets within trade and other recevables approximate to ther fair vaiues

The Company I1s exposed to credit nsk in respect of the loan to the subsidiary, however, as the subsidiary 1s
expected to generate positive operating cash flows and, excluding the inter company balance has net asgets this

loan 1s not considered to be mpaired
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13. Trade and other receivables {continued)
The ageing of trade and other recewvables at 31 March 2012 s detailled below
2012 2011

Gross Allowance Gross Aflowance

£000s £000s E000s £000s
Not past due 1,002 - 3,021 -
Past due 1 - 30 days 453 - 112 -
Past due 31- 60 days 88 - 26 -
Past due 61- 80 days 258 (105) - -
Past due 90 days 66 (10) 40 (21)
Total 1,867 {115) 3,199 (21)
Movements on the Group prowvision for imparment of trade receivables are as follows

202 2011
£000s £000s

At 1 Aprll 21 21
Provision for recevables impainment 105 -
Unused amounts reversed {11) -
At 31 March

As at 31 March 2012, trade recewvables of £1 00m (2011 £3 02m) were not past due

116 21

As at 31 March 2012, trade receivables of £750k (2011 £157k) were past dus but not imparred These relate to
a number of indepandent customers for whom there 1 no recent history of default

The changes tn the provision for imparred recewables have been mncluded in ‘administrative expenses’ in the

statement of comprehensive mcome,

14. Deferred tax

The: following deferred tax assets have not been recogrised due to the uncertanty of future sutable faxable

profits within the Group

Unprowvided deferred tax assets are set out below

Fxed asset timing differences
Tax losses carned forward

Total

No deferred tax assets are held by the Company

Group Group
unprovided unprovided
2012 2011
£000s £000s

72 40

1,867 1,330

1,939 1,370

47




:?Ac_ﬁve
Risk .

Notes to the Financial Statements continued

For the year ended 31 March 2012

15 Current trade and other payables

Trade payables

Other tax and social secunty
Other creditors

Accruals

Bank loan

Deferred income

Total payables due within one year

Group Group Company Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£000s £000s £000s £000s
3286 273 - -
292 505 - -
108 1,162 - -
333 223 - 1
55 61 - -
2,492 1,908 - -
3,606 4,132 - 1

The bank lean is held with Royal Bank of Scotland and repayment of the balance 1s secured by a debenture
1ssued on 11 July 2008 The loan s repayable over 5 years In equal monthly instalments, the commitment waill

complete within the next twelve manths

16. Non-current trade and other payables

Deferred income
Bank loan

Total payables due after one year

The Company has no non-current trade and other payables

17. Financial instruments by category

31 March 2012
Assets as per the balance shest

Trade receivables excluding prepayments
Loans to subsidianes
Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Liabilities as per the balance sheet

Borrowings
Trade payables, other creditors and accruals

Total

48

Group Group
2012 2011
£000s £000s

65 124

- 87

65 181

Group Company
Loans and Loans and
receivables recewables
£000s £000s
1,883 -

- 4,985

3,343 1,750
5,226 6,735
Financral Financial
Lizbitties liabiities
£000s £000s

55 -

767 -

822 -
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17 Financial instruments by category (continued)
Group  Company
Loans and Loans and

31 March 2011 recervables recewables
Assefs as per the balance sheet £000s £000s
Trade recewvables excluding prepayments 3,863 -
Loans to subsidianes - 4,867
Cash and cash eguivalents 2,316 378
Total 6,179 5,245

Financial Financial
fabilities habifities

Liabihties as per the balance sheet £600s £000s
Borrowings 118 -
Trade payables, other creditors and accruals 1,658 1
Total 1 , 776 1

All financial isbilities are recorded at amortised cost The matunty of the financiat habiities 1s as follows

£000s

Within 1-3 months 657
Within 1 year 165
B22

The Group has used a sensitivity analysis techruque that measures the estimated change to the statement of
comprehensive income and equity of either an instantaneous increase or decrease of 1% (100 basls points) in
market interast rates or a 10% strengthening or weakening in stering aganst all material currencies (US dollar
and Euro) for each class of financial instrument with all other vanables remaining constant This analysis 1s for
llustrative purposes only, as In practice, market rates rarely change in isolation The sensiinvty analysis s based
on the following assumptions

Interest rate risks
Changes in market mnterest rates affect the interest income or expense of vanable nterest financial instruments

Changes in market mterest rates only affect nterest ncome or expense in relation to financal nstruments with
fixed interest rates If these are recognised at therr farr value

Al 31 March 2012, the Group has cash reserves of £3 3m (2011 £2 3m)} and a bank loan ongnally of £275k,
repayable over & years At 31 March 2012 £55k (2011 £118k) was outstanding on this bank loan Under the

above mentioned assumptions a 1% change in the interest rate has no material effect on profit or cash reserves,
meterial beng a move of more than £50,000

The effect of interest rate nsk on the Company 18 not considered sigrficant
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17 Financial instruments by category {continued)

Foreign exchange risks

With a 10% strengthening or weakening of sterling agamst the US dollar the loss before tax would have increased
by approximately £14k (2011 profit decreased by £80k) or decreased by £16k (2011 profit ncreased by £88k)
respectively With a 10% strengthening or weakering of Sterling aganst the Euro the loss before tax would have
increased by approximately £63k (2011 profit decreased by £60k) or decreased by £69k {2011 profil increased
by £66k) respectively

The Group makes use of forward exchange contracts to manage the nsk relating to future transactions, n
accordance with ils risk management policy Gains on the forward exchange contracts dunng the year are not
considered matenal and have not been accounted for in the financial statements

The effect of foreign exchange nisk on the Company ts not considered significant

Credit risk

The Group’s financial assets are compnsed of cash at bank and deposits at the year end and trade recewvables
All the Group's deposits are held with reputable financia! institutions Interest is received on cash deposits at
variable rates based on the relevant bank base rate The Group’s maxmum credit nsk exposure 1s n relatien to
trade recewables of £1 8m (2011 £3 2m}

Financial liabilities

The Group has a bank loan onginally of £275k, repayable over 5 years in equal monthly instalments Interest 1s
payable at 2% above the bank base rate As at 31 March 2012 there 1s £55k (2011 £118k) of capital outstanding
on this loan which 1s to be re-paid in the naxt financiat year

Liquidity risk

This 1s the nisk that the Group cannot pay its liabilites as they fali due At present no borrowmng facilites are in
place, except for the bank loan referred to above under financial kabities

Fair values

The fair values of the Group's financial assets and habilities are not matenally different from the carrying values in
the consoldated statement of financial position and notes to the financiat information

Currency exposure
Non-sterling assets held by the Group

usp AUD EUR AED Totaf

£000s £000s £000s E00Qs £000s

Sterling (201 1) 1,140 23 417 - 1,580
Sterling (2012) 1,405 482 543 42 2,472
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18 Capital and reserves

Nurnber
Authornised 000s £000s
Total authorised ordinary shares of 1p each as at
31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 40,000 400
Share Share
Number Capital  premium Total
Allotted, cafled up and fully paid 000s £000s £000s £000s
Ordinary shares of 1p each as at 1 Apnl 2011 28,961 289 3,319 3,608
Issue of share capital - placing 2,806 29 1,419 1,448
Costs of issue - - (86) (86)
lssue of ghare capital — options 60 1 2 3
Ordinary shares of 1p each as at 31 March 2012 31,917 319 4,654 4,973
Treasury shares held by Employee Benefit Trust 1,429 14 - 14
33,346 333 4,654 4,987

Ordinary shares
All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receve dividends as declared and are entitled to one vote per share
at meetings of the Company In respect of the Company’s shares that are held by the Group, all nghts are
suspended untl those shares are reissued

Issue of ordinary shares

On 9 June 2011 the Group placed 2,896,080 new ordinary shares with institutional investors at a price of 50
pence per share raising £1,448,040, before expenses

Share prermum
The share premium reserve comprises the amount subscribed for share capital in excess of 1ts nominai value

Merger reserve

The merger reserve compnses the difference between the nominal value of the shares i1ssued by Active Risk
Group Plc plus the far value of any other consideration given, and the nominal value of the Active Risk Limited
shares receved in exchange

Other reserve
The other reserve represents the cumulative cost of share options i1ssued to employees of the Group

Reserve for own shares

The reserve for the Company’s own shares compnises the cost of the Company's shares held by the Group At
31 March 2012 the Group held 1,429,000 (2011 1,429,000) treasury shares in the Employee Benefit Trust with
anominal value of £14k (2011 £14k) The market value of shares held was £450k (2011 £593K) Duning the year
no (2011 nil) treasury shares were reissued under the Group share option scheme
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18. Capital and reserves (continued)
Retained earnings

Retained earnings as disciosed in the statement of changes in equity reprasent the accumulated gains and losses
recognised in the financial statements

The Group has EMI and non-EMI gption schemes in operation The number of shares subect to options, the
perncods in which they were granted and the periods in which they may be exercised are given below

Options
Options as at  Options  Options as at
31 March  granted/ exercised/ 31 March  Exercise
Date of Issue 2011 flapsed) (expired) 2012 price £ Pernod of exercise
EMI options
2g June 2001 28,800 - {28,800} - 0014 31 Mar 04 ~ 28 Jun 11
4 November 2002 27,900 - {27,200) - 0043 31 Mar 04 - 3 Nov 12
1 June 2004 196,450 - (3,600) 192,850 029 2 Jun 04 - 31 May 14
7 July 2005 154,053 (10,417) - 143,636 1200 8Jul 08 —6 Jul 15
3 July 20086 11,331 - - 11,331 1765 4Jul 08 -2 Jul 16
4 July 2007 170,370 - - 170,370 Q875 5Jul 10 -3 Jul 17
4 February 2008 50,000 - - 50,000 0365 5Feb 11 -3Feb 18
3 March 2008 100,000 - - 100,000 0335 4 Mar 11 — 2 Mar 18
22 July 2008 100,000 - - 100,000 Q800 23 Jul 11 —-21 Jul 18
4 February 2009 50,000 (50,000) - - 0415 S5Feb 12 -3Feb 19
21 December 2009 50,000 - - 50,000 0 350 21 Dec 12 -20 Dec 19
26 May 2010 1,281,489 (120,000) - 1,161,489 0335 26 May 13 - 25 May 20
30 June 2010 60,000 (30,000) - 30,000 0355 30 Jun 13 ~ 29 Jun 20
25 May 2011 - 150,000 - 150,000 0510 25 May 14 — 24 May 21
29 June 2011 - 46,250 - 46,250 0505 29 Jun 14 — 28 Jun 21
5 March 2012 - 100,000 - 100,000 0435 5 Mar 15 — 4 Mar 22

EMI Options Total 2,280,493 85833 (60,400) 2,305,926

Non-EMI options

7 July 2005 64,698 - - 64,608 1 200 6 Jul 08 -~ 5 Jul 15

4 July 2007 74,074 - - 74,074 0675 3Jul10-2Jul 17

4 February 2008 2,000 - - 2,000 0 365 5Feb 11 ~3Feb 18

11 February 2008 156,000 - - 15,000 0335 12 Feb 11 - 10 Feb 18
26 May 2010 1,549,489 - - 1,549,489 0335 26 May 13 - 25 May 20
30 June 2010 30,000 - - 30,600 0355 30 Jun 13 - 29 Jun 20
25 May 2011 - 100,000 - 100,000 0510 25 May 14 - 24 May 21
31 May 2011 - 100,000 - 100,000 0525 31 May 14 - 30 May 21
29 June 2011 - 57,000 - 57,000 0505 29 Jun 14 — 28 Jun 21
1 September 2011 - 100,000 - 100,000 0400 1 Sep 14 — 31 Aug 21
Non-EMI Options

Total 1,735,261 357,000 ~- 2,092,261

Total 4,015,754 442,838 {60,400) 4,398,187
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19. Share based payments

The Employee Share Option Plan (ESOP) was infroduced in March 2001 Under the ESOP the Remuneration
Committee can grant equity settled options over shares in the Company to employees of the Group Options are
granted with a tixed exercise price equal to the market price of the shares under option at the date of grant The
contractual ife of an oplion is 10 years Awards under the ESOP are generally granted to senior employees within
the Group The company makes grants throughout the year in order to ncentivise new and existing employees
alke Options granted under the ESOP will become exercisable on the third anniversary of the date of grant ~
there are no performance condiions, however, exercise 1s subject to continued employment Options have been
valued using the Biack-Scholes option-pricing mode!l No performance conditions were ncluded in the farr value
calculatons The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used in the calculation are as fallows

Options 1ssued in 2012

Grant date 25May 11 3TMay i1 29Junit 18ep11 SMari2
Share price at grant date £0 51 £053 £0 51 £0 40 €0 44
Exercise price £0 51 £0.53 £0 51 £0 40 £0 44
Number of employees 5 1 8 1 1
Shares under option 300,000 100,000 119,250 100,000 100,000
Vesting period {years) 3 3 3 3 3
Expected volatility 67% 67% 66% 66% 64%
Option Ife (vears) 10 10 10 10 10
Expected life {years) 4 4 4 4 4
Risk free interest rate 1 98% 1 96% 2 02% 1 36% 102%
Expecied dividends expressed as a

dividend yeld 0 00% 0 00% 0 00% 0 00% 0 00%
Farr value per option £0 286 €027 £0 26 £020 €019

Options 1ssued i 2011

Grant date 26 May 10 30 Jun 10
Share price at grant date £034 £0 36
Exercise price £034 £0 36
Number of employees 7 3
Shares under option 2,830,978 90,000
Vesting period {years} 3 3
Expected volatility 51% 50%
Option life (years) 10 10
Expected hfe {years) 4 4
Risk free interest rate 1 93% 181%
Expected dmvidends expressed as a dividend yield 0 00% 0 00%
Fair value per ophion £0 114 £0 14
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19. Share based payments (continued)
The expected volatidity for the 2012 and 2011 option grants 1s based on historical volatiity from the date that the
Group was floated on AIM to the date of grant The nsk free rate of return 15 the yield on zero-coupon UK
government bonds of a term consistent with the assumed option iife A reconciliation of option movements over
the year to 31 March 2012 15 shown below

2012 2011

Weighted Weighted

average average

exercise exercise

Date of Issue Number price Number pnce
Qutstanding at 1 Apnil 4,015,754 £041 3,190,943 £0 36
Granted 719,250 £049 2,920,978 £0.34
Lapsed/forferted (276,417} £042 (2,066,667) £0 22
Exprrad - - {29,500) £0 01
Exercised (60,400} £004 - -
Quistanding at 31 March 4,308,187 £043 4,015,754 £0 41
Exercisable at 31 March 923,959 £0 68 894,776 £0 63

The weighted average far value of options granted in the year was £46k (2011 £409k) The weighted average
remainng contractual life of oplrons in 1ssue and outstanding at the penod end 18 7 years (2011 8 years)

The tolal charge for the year relating to employee share based payment plans was £115k (2011 credit of £459k),
all of which related to equity-settled share based payment transactions

The credit in the prior year related to the cost of the share based payments charged in prior years to the
Comprehensive Income Statement, relating to the options of the previous CEO which will not vest

20. Operating lease commitments
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows

2012 2011

£000s £000s

Within one year 271 154
Between one and five years 718 462
Qver five years 336 -
1,325 618

The rent on 1 Grenfell Road s payable under a five year lease which commenced in October 2010 There 1s a
break clause after three years in October 2013

The rent on the US office is payable under a seven year lease signed in February 2012 There 1s a break clause
after three years in 2015

21. Contingent liabilities

Within the Group there are two bank guarantees in place at the end of the year The maximum exposure under
these guarantees 1s £32k and they both expire within the next twelve months

Actve Risk Group plc 1s the guarantor for the lease on the US office signed by Active Risk Inc in February 2012

In the event of default on the lease In the next twelve months the maximum liability is $175k This default lability
decreases over the length of the lease
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22. Penston commitments
There were no outstanding or prepaid pension contributions at either the beginming or end of the financial year

23. Related party transactions

The only related party transactions are the directors emoluments disclosed in note 8, the investments In
subsidiaries in note 12 and loans 10 subsidianes disclosed in note 13

24  Controlling party

At the year ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 the Directors consider that there s no single individual or
entity that can or does exercise ultimate control
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